City of Seattle Invitation to Bid #SPU2869
Addendum 

Updated on 09/16/2011

The following is additional information regarding Invitation to Bid #SPU2869, titled CCTV Sewer Inspection and Services released on 08/26/2011.  The due date and time for responses remains 09/27/2011; 4:30PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective bidders and the City’s answers, and revisions to the ITB.  This addendum is hereby made part of the ITB and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	ITB Revisions

	1
	08/31/2011
	09/16/2011
	We provide more sophisticated pipe condition assessment compared to standard CCTV inspections.  Should I still respond to this bid in case you would wish to have your pipelines conditioned assessed using our robots and sensor (3D Lidar, Sonar, Gas, HD CCTV)?
	Yes.
	

	2
	09/12/2011
	09/16/2011
	Smoke Testing Services

Will the vendor be responsible for public notification of smoke and dye testing? 
If so, will the vendor be responsible for anything other than door to door notifications?  


	Yes, the vendor will be responsible for public notification.  There is nothing other than door to door notification required
	

	3
	09/12/2011
	09/16/2011
	Will you expect the Vendor to conduct direct mailings or place newspaper notifications? 


	No
	

	4
	09/12/2011
	09/16/2011
	How do you want defects recorded and reported to SPU?  GPS coordinates?  Or do you just want measurements to two standard fixed objects?
	Yes, defects are to be recorded and reported to SPU using industry standard protocol.  GPS coordinates are not required.
	

	5
	09/12/2011
	09/16/2011
	Is SPU able to provide a specification for smoke testing services?


	
	Yes, specifications are embedded below.

[image: image1.emf]Specification SMOKE  TESTING SPU.doc



	6
	09/12/2011
	09/16/2011
	Is SPU able to provide a specification for dye testing services?

Is the purpose to verify direct connections (roof drains, area drains) for inflow?
	Dye testing will be performed per industry standards for the purposes of verifying direct connections  (roof drains, area drains) for inflow
	

	7
	09/12/2011
	09/16/2011
	Is SPU able to provide a specification for electronic leak detection services?

Most of the items in this bid relate to sanitary or storm sewers, does this line item refer to leak detection in water services?
	Electronic leak detection is not included for sanitary and storm sewers or in water systems.
	

	8
	09/14/2011
	09/16/2011
	If subcontracting is needed must the subcontractor be registered with the City?
	The City anticipates all work to be self performed under any ensuing blanket contract.  If there is a need for subcontracting the City has other blanket contractors that can be utilized.
	

	9
	09/14/2011
	09/16/2011
	Is a Bid Bond or Performance Bond required?
	No
	

	10
	09/14/2011
	09/16/2011
	Excavation is shown as excluded from the contract.  What about hydro excavation/vactoring?
	Hydro excavation/vactoring is allowed.
	

	11
	09/14/2011
	09/16/2011
	Is the vendor responsible for Permitting (Right of Way, Street Use, etc.)?
	Yes, however; the city may at its option coordinate and acquire permits for individual work orders.
	

	12
	09/14/2011
	09/16/2011
	Cementitious Grouting type is not specified, what type is to be used?
	
	Generic description was used.  Submit individual specification to verify “as equal” status for your cementitious

	13
	09/14/2011
	09/16/2011
	Grouting services is referenced as needed in Scope of Work.  Cannot find pricing matrix submittal for Grouting pricing in ITB.  How can we include this in our ITB?
	
	Grouting services price schedule is Schedule 16.  It consists of hourly rate, mobilization, price per vertical foot and material costs.

	14
	09/15/2011
	
	Can the manhole pricing be split to show pricing for brick manholes verses precast manholes?
	Answer pending
	

	15
	09/15/2011
	
	The spec for the Polyurethane coating mentions 250 mils for thickness of the lining.  The epoxy spec has no mil thickness listed.  Can you verify the mil thickness of the epoxy?  With manhole rehab it is recommended to be at least 125mils.
	Answer Pending
	

	16
	09/15/2011
	09/16/2011
	Is the mob time for each contract/work order or for each time you show up to do a manhole?
	The mobilization is for each contract/work order.  In the event a work order involves multiple days a daily mobilization is allowed.
	

	17
	09/15/2011
	09/16/2011
	The ASTM for adhesion testing in the spec is ASTM D4541, this is for steel. ASTM 7234 is for concrete. The psi is nearly triple for steel. Could this be amended to the proper ASTM standard for concrete?
	
	The correct specification is ASTM 7234.  Please amend Specification Manhole overview.doc to reflect the standard for concrete.

	18
	09/15/2011
	
	The polyurethane and the epoxy liners have no physical properties listed does the City have a standard for each?


	Answer pending.
	

	19
	
	
	
	
	

	20
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SMOKE TESTING


Intent:  The intent of smoke testing sewers is to detect sources of inflow, area drains, abandoned building sewers, storm sewer cross connections, roof downspouts, and illegal connections.  Smoke testing is not intended to detect sources of infiltration such as leaking joints and faulty building sewers.


General:  Smoke testing for SPU work will utilize a double blower assembly and is performed by blowing a high volume of low pressure smoke into the sewer at one or more manholes.  Plugs or sandbags will be used to confine the smoke to the section or sections of sewer being tested.  Observation of the emergence of smoke enables the crew to deduce sources of inflow.


Every building served by the sewer will usually have two or more roof vents from which smoke will emerge. The roof vents (usually one for each trap) are not sources of inflow and are ignored.  The residents and fire departments must be told to ignore the smoke as well.


Since the sewer is connected to roof vents at every building, the smoke has very low pressure regardless of the pressure capability of the smoke blower.  Smoke will not escape through pipe defects (infiltration sources) which are below the groundwater table.  Smoke may escape through pipe defects which are above the groundwater table, but the smoke must find a path to the surface in order to be observed.  Smoke emerging from the ground or from cracks in the street surface indicates pipe defects above the groundwater table but does not indicate the type or exact location of the defects.


Equipment:  Blowers suitable for smoke testing sewers have a circular flange or plate for mounting on an open manhole and are gasoline engine driven ... A small gasoline engine can develop about 3 horsepower compared to 1 horsepower for the largest practical size electric motor.  Blowers recommended for smoke testing have a free-air delivery of at least 1700 CFM.  The static pressure capability of the blowers is less than an inch of water pressure (1.0 inch of water = 0.036 psi).


Smoke:  Smoke used for smoke testing sewers is cold and very visible (white).  The smoke is not hazardous and is free of oil and colored particles which could leave residue and stains.  Smoke "candles" recommended for smoke testing will be 5 minute duration candles.


Smoke is introduced into the sewer either by placing a smoke candle at the blower intake or by lowering the smoke candle into the manhole in a bucket and blowing air in from above.


The inspector should understand that the smoke candles are not dangerous and have a limited shelf life.  Once opened, a package of smoke candles should be used.  Smoke candles exposed to moisture should not be on the jobsite.


Advance Notices:  Prior to performing smoke testing of sewers, residents are to be notified of the purpose and approximate date of the work.  Residents are told that they will see smoke emerging from their roof vents and are asked to run water into all drains, especially basement drains, to insure that the traps are not dry.


SPU will coordinate work efforts with local fire and police departments should be advised daily of the areas being tested, on a street-to-street basis.  Personnel handling telephone inquiries should be acquainted 'with the purposes of the smoke-testing program.


Smoke Test Procedure:


1. Advance notice is given to residents, fire and police departments.


2. The manhole section or sections to be tested are isolated.  One method is to use sandbags filled with medium-weight material which can be swung into place by the use of a rope from the street surface.  The incoming pipe of the upstream manhole and then the outgoing pipe of the downstream manhole are blocked.  Care must be taken, when blocking the outgoing pipe of the downstream manhole, to prevent sewage flow from backing up and pushing the sandbag into the outgoing pipe.


3. The smoke blowers are set up at both manholes of the pipe segment to be tested.  Best results and control are achieved when only one manhole section is tested at a time.  The blower is usually located at the upstream manhole because the outgoing pipe of the downstream manhole should not be completely blocked.  The blowers may be set up at a center manhole and both upstream and downstream sections can be tested simultaneously

4. After the smoke blower is started a smoke candle is ignited, placed in a bucket and lowered into the manhole.  Blowers are then positioned on the open manholes. 

5. In less than a minute, smoke will be issuing from the roof vents of buildings and any directly connected points of inflow.


6. A smoke-testing crew will consists of three persons.  One individual operates and maintains the blower while the other two walk the test area to locate and document inflow sources indicated by emerging smoke.


7. The crew documents significant and identifiable points of inflow.  Documentation should be referenced to each manhole section tested (e.g.: A01-A02).  Sketches, field notes, portable tape recordings, and photographs will be required to record test results.  A set of boldly numbered cards on heavy stock can be used to relate photographs of inflow sources to the sketches and field notes.



